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ANSWERS TO QUESTIONS 

SUBMITTED PRIOR TO THE RELEASE OF

FINAL RFP # 9-BL-23-2-03P
Questions submitted at the Presolicitation Conference:

1. Will today’s briefing be placed on the web?  If yes, when?

Yes.  The briefing charts were posted on May 3, 2002 (see modification 4 to the presolicitation synopsis).

2. Please comment on the status and draft release date of the 2 remaining example problems that have not been released.

The two example problems have been combined and were released with the final RFP.
3. Is there a collaborative arrangement between psychiatry, psychology and family support services?  

Yes; this is definitely a collaborative arrangement.  The work instructions help describe normal operations in this area. 

4. What, if any, impact will the remap results have on the RFP?

None; we have built a flexible contract, and the RFP will be unaffected.  

5. Is flight medicine responsible for the medical care of any dependents of International flight crews?

These requirements are covered under a contract that is not being consolidated into the Bioastronautics Contract.  It is currently not planned to have these requirements in the Bioastronautics Contract.

6. How does the score of  81 apply to the awarding of an additional 1-year contract term?  Does this score of 81 mean that if the contractor scores above 81, they will receive an additional 1-year term?

The final RFP does not include award term.

7. What are the number of contractor employees in each function under this Bioastronautics Contract (at least down to the third level)?

Questions have been received relating to information needed on specific resources currently being applied in the contracts that will be consolidated into the Bioastronautics Contract (BC).  The consolidation of these contracts into one BC is expected to provide efficiency in the management of resources on the upcoming contract.  Therefore, specific resources being applied on current contracts being consolidated into the BC may change.  To help offerors have a better understanding of typical activities that occur in the laboratories applicable to the BC, additional information is provided in the electronic Technical Library listed under the section “General Documentation” and is entitled “Bioastronautics Laboratories/Facilities  -  Current Activity”.

8. During the briefing, some elements of the Bioastronautics organization were identified as not supported by the contractor.  Please identify all of the organizations not supported by the solicitation. 

Briefing charts were updated to show current work planned for the BC.  The briefing charts were posted on May 3, 2002 (see modification 4 to the presolicitation synopsis).

Questions submitted in the Laboratory Observation Tours:

Muscle Research

9. What are the current scientific projects (unpublished) in the lab?

 A listing of ongoing and past projects was provided in the handout for the MRL.

10. What is the total EP working in the Lab?


Questions have been received relating to information needed on specific resources currently being applied in the contracts that will be consolidated into the Bioastronautics Contract (BC).  The consolidation of these contracts into one BC is expected to provide efficiency in the management of resources on the upcoming contract.  Therefore, specific resources being applied on current contracts being consolidated into the BC may change.  To help offerors have a better understanding of typical activities that occur in the laboratories applicable to the BC, additional information is provided in the electronic Technical Library listed under the section “General Documentation” and is  entitled “Bioastronautics Laboratories/Facilities  -  Current Activity”.

11. Please split between tech support and science support?

This should be determined by the offeror based on the Bioastronautics Contract Statement of Work and specific task orders.

12. What are the skills used in the lab?

Currently, skills include Biochemistry, Pharmacology and Technical & Science experience in Human Muscle.

13. What certifications are required of staff?

This is to be proposed by the offeror based their approach to SOW requirements.  Currently, there is no specific certification required for research.

14. What equipment requires contractor furnished maintenance and approximate cost?

This is to be proposed by the offeror based their approach to RFP requirements.  Reference Attachment J-6 in Section J of the solicitation.  The listing of equipment in Attachment J-6 for the final RFP will also include the model year for each piece of equipment listed to help aid offerors in their approach to equipment.
15. What level of support is needed for basic readiness?

The specific tasks that define Baseline Operational Readiness shall be determined by the offeror and are to be included in the offeror’s Baseline Operational Readiness Plan as explained in Section L.  To help offerors have a better understanding of typical activities that occur in the laboratories applicable to the BC, additional information is provided in the electronic Technical Library listed under the section “General Documentation” and is entitled “Bioastronautics Laboratories/Facilities  -  Current Activity”.

16. Approximate cost of consumables per year?

To help offerors have a better understanding of typical activities that occur in the laboratories applicable to the BC, additional information is provided in the electronic Technical Library listed under the section “General Documentation” and is entitled “Bioastronautics Laboratories/Facilities  -  Current Activity”.

Non-Labor “ plug-in” numbers for materials are planned to be released to offerors via an amendment to the RFP.  Only “plug-in” numbers for example T/DOs will be provided by the Government.

17. Name of SOP or work instructions?

A listing of work instructions is provided in the BC technical library.

Environmental Physiology 

18. Please comment on when thermal physiology may become active again?

There are no current plans at this time.

19. Who is the bioastronautics EVA IPT NASA chairperson?

Dr. Jim Locke

20. Please comment on how much of the lab’s activities are driven by the IPT?

About 20%.

21. What skills are required of the technical/science staff?

This is to be proposed by the offeror based their approach to SOW requirements.  Currently, the type of skills includes Physiological Technician support and PhD level support in Physiology & Biophysics.   Skills also include Data base management and modeling. 

22. Are any specific certifications or licenses required of staff?

This is to be proposed by the offeror based their approach to SOW requirements.  Currently, there are no formal certifications required.

23. Please list rooms (office, lab, ect.) related to this task?  

Reference Attachment J-13 in Section J of the solicitation.

24. The briefing given focused on on-orbit & on-site experiments.  Could comment be made as to what the lab staff on a daily basis exclusive of admin and database.  That medical procedures conducted, analysis ongoing etc.?

To help offerors have a better understanding of typical activities that occur in the laboratories applicable to the BC, additional information is provided in the electronic Technical Library listed under the section “General Documentation” and is entitled “Bioastronautics Laboratories/Facilities  -  Current Activity”.

Pharmacology

25. What skill sets do you have amongst the technical and professional staff?

The Laboratory currently has personnel and equipment to conduct pharmacotherapeutics operations and research.  Operations in the lab include clinical pharmacology database maintenance, pharmaceutical analyses, therapeutic drug monitoring and providing pharmaceutical support for the Space Shuttle, International Space Station, and space exploration programs and clinical pharmacology and chronotherapeutics research. The Laboratory activities include clinical pharmacy services, STAT drug analyses, drug information and monographs, pharmacokinetics and pharmacodynamics research, therapeutic drug monitoring, specialized therapeutic monitoring for space flight related pathophysiology, novel dosage form development and pharmaceutical stability assessment.
26. Are any specific certifications, training, or diplomas required of staff as a prerequisite to work?  What are they?

Currently, the lab has Clinical Pharmacologist and Medical Technician support.  Offerors shall propose any certifications based their approach to SOW requirements.
Cellular & Molecular Research

27. What skill sets do you have amongst the technical and professional staff?

Currently, personnel have experience with multi-laser 4+ color cytometry protocols on advanced research grade instruments.  Personnel have postgraduate experience in basic cell biology/biochemistry, flow cytometry and experience in a basic research setting.  Experience also includes mammalian cell culture techniques, protein biochemistry, protein immunoassays, protein/western analysis.  In addition, personnel have experience with electron microscopy, confocal microscopy and fluorescence microscopy.  
28.  Are any specific certifications, training, or diplomas required of staff as a prerequisite to work?  What are they?

Pursuant to JSC Safety and Health requirements, all individuals must pass blood-borne pathogen training, compressed gas handling, chemical safety, and radioisotope use training (radiation safety).
Human Factors and Advanced Technology

29. What type of personnel training & certification is required for UTAF? Concept Exploration Lab?  What type of certification/calibration is required for CEL equipment? 

Training and certification shall be proposed by the offerors based on their approach to SOW requirements.  

Currently, Human Computer Interaction (HCI) and ergonomics training is required for the UTAF.  For the Concept Exploration Lab, currently there is no specific training or certification required, but experience in the field of computational developmental engineering is needed.  Background in human system integration, developmental test, and avionics and computer resources for piloted craft is also currently needed.  Flight test experience is viewed as a level II requirement for our technical management, but is not required for our line engineers and human factors specialists.  All of the above include familiarity with industry standard as well as cutting edge hardware and software families that are employed in the concept evaluation and developmental engineering fields.  

Certification and calibration of CEL equipment is industry standard for computer visualization and engineering data processing.
30. What is the current level (FTE) of contractor support personnel to the UTAF?

Questions have been received relating to information needed on specific resources currently being applied in the contracts that will be consolidated into the Bioastronautics Contract (BC).  The consolidation of these contracts into one BC is expected to provide efficiency in the management of resources on the upcoming contract.  Therefore, specific resources being applied on current contracts being consolidated into the BC may change.   To help offerors have a better understanding of typical activities that occur in the laboratories applicable to the BC, additional information is provided in the electronic Technical Library listed under the section “General Documentation” and is entitled “Bioastronautics Laboratories/Facilities  -  Current Activity”.

Biotechnology   

31. How is technology transferred to the private sector?


Please reference NASA FAR Supplement clause 1852.227-70 “New Technology”, which is included by reference in Section G of the RFP.  

Animal Holding Facility

32. Level of veterinarian support needed? Hrs/month?
 
To help offerors have a better understanding of typical activities that occur in the laboratories applicable to the BC, additional information is provided in the electronic Technical Library listed under the section “General Documentation” and is entitled “Bioastronautics Laboratories/Facilities  -  Current Activity”.

33. Number of animal tech EPs?


Questions have been received relating to information needed on specific resources currently being applied in the contracts that will be consolidated into the Bioastronautics Contract (BC).  The consolidation of these contracts into one BC is expected to provide efficiency in the management of resources on the upcoming contract.  Therefore, specific resources being applied on current contracts being consolidated into the BC may change.  To help offerors have a better understanding of typical activities that occur in the laboratories applicable to the BC, additional information is provided in the electronic Technical Library listed under the section “General Documentation” and is entitled “Bioastronautics Laboratories/Facilities  -  Current Activity”.

Toxicology

34. EPs needed?
Questions have been received relating to information needed on specific resources currently being applied in the contracts that will be consolidated into the Bioastronautics Contract (BC).  The consolidation of these contracts into one BC is expected to provide efficiency in the management of resources on the upcoming contract.  Therefore, specific resources being applied on current contracts being consolidated into the BC may change To help offerors have a better understanding of typical activities that occur in the laboratories applicable to the BC, additional information is provided in the electronic Technical Library listed under the section “General Documentation” and is entitled “Bioastronautics Laboratories/Facilities  -  Current Activity”.

35. Qualification and certification of staff needed?
Qualification and certification shall be proposed by the offeror.  Currently, Toxicology has PhD level toxicologists and PhD level analytical chemists experienced in operating complex laboratory equipment to analyze environmental samples for trace levels of multiple contaminants.

Water and Food Analysis

36. EPs needed?
Questions have been received relating to information needed on specific resources currently being applied in the contracts that will be consolidated into the Bioastronautics Contract (BC).  The consolidation of these contracts into one BC is expected to provide efficiency in the management of resources on the upcoming contract.  Therefore, specific resources being applied on current contracts being consolidated into the BC may change.   To help offerors have a better understanding of typical activities that occur in the laboratories applicable to the BC, additional information is provided in the electronic Technical Library listed under the section “General Documentation” and is entitled “Bioastronautics Laboratories/Facilities  -  Current Activity”.

37. Travel required?
Travel  shall be proposed by the offeror based on their approach to SOW requirements.

Currently, travel requirements for WAFAL include travel to professional meetings and occasionally to Russia for Technical Interchange Meetings.

38. Training required of staff?  

Training shall be proposed by the offeror based on their approach to SOW requirements.  Currently, the Water and Food Laboratory has PhD level analytical chemists experienced in operating complex laboratory equipment to analyze environmental samples for trace levels of multiple contaminants.

39. Qualification and certification of staff needed.
Qualification and certification shall be proposed by the offeror based on their approach to SOW requirements.  Currently, the Water and Food Laboratory has PhD level analytical chemists experienced in operating complex laboratory equipment to analyze environmental samples for trace levels of multiple contaminants.

40. Provide a detailed equipment list


Reference Attachment J-6 in Section J of the solicitation.

41. Describe the data handling system.
The data handling system used is LIMS.  Documentation about the software is available as COTS.
42.  Describe instrument calibration system. 

The current instructions for calibration of equipment in the water and food analysis area are provided in the Technical Library’s Work Instructions. 

Space Radiation Analysis Group Radiation Operations Support Area (SRAG ROSA)

43. Qualifications/certifications required of staff
Pursuant to JSC’s ISO system, there is a SRAG Training Plan in the Technical Library

44. What is the EP level including Mission Support for Shuttle/Station?


Questions have been received relating to information needed on specific resources currently being applied in the contracts that will be consolidated into the Bioastronautics Contract (BC).  The consolidation of these contracts into one BC is expected to provide efficiency in the management of resources on the upcoming contract.  Therefore, specific resources being applied on current contracts being consolidated into the BC may change.  To help offerors have a better understanding of typical activities that occur in the laboratories applicable to the BC, additional information is provided in the electronic Technical Library listed under the section “General Documentation” and is entitled “Bioastronautics Laboratories/Facilities  -  Current Activity”.

45. What are the SOP or work instructions?
SN3-WI-001, -002, -005 and –009 all apply to SRAG.

Space Radiation Dosimetry

46. Qualification and certification of staff needed. 

Although, no specific qualification or certification is required for the Space Radiation Dosimetry Lab, a U.S. “Secret” security clearance is needed.

47. What is the EP level including Mission Support for Shuttle/Station?
Questions have been received relating to information needed on specific resources currently being applied in the contracts that will be consolidated into the Bioastronautics Contract (BC).  The consolidation of these contracts into one BC is expected to provide efficiency in the management of resources on the upcoming contract.  Therefore, specific resources being applied on current contracts being consolidated into the BC may change.  To help offerors have a better understanding of typical activities that occur in the laboratories applicable to the BC, additional information is provided in the electronic Technical Library listed under the section “General Documentation” and is entitled “Bioastronautics Laboratories/Facilities  -  Current Activity”.

48. What are the SOP or work instructions?
The Space Radiation Dosimetry Lab Work Instruction is available in Technical Library.
Radiation Electronics

49. Qualification and certification of staff needed?
Qualification and certification shall be proposed by the offeror based on their approach to the SOW requirements.  Currently, the laboratory has Electrostatic Discharge (ESD) certification and, depending on work being done, flight equipment development certification, e.g., soldering of flight hardware is needed for Radiation Electronics Lab.  The Radiation Electronics Lab Work Instruction is available in Technical Library and also contains a listing of coursework.

50. What is the ratio of certified to non-certified staff?

This should be proposed by the offeror based on their approach to SOW requirements.

51. What is the EP level?

Questions have been received relating to information needed on specific resources currently being applied in the contracts that will be consolidated into the Bioastronautics Contract (BC).  The consolidation of these contracts into one BC is expected to provide efficiency in the management of resources on the upcoming contract.  Therefore, specific resources being applied on current contracts being consolidated into the BC may change.   To help offerors have a better understanding of typical activities that occur in the laboratories applicable to the BC, additional information is provided in the electronic Technical Library listed under the section “General Documentation” and is entitled “Bioastronautics Laboratories/Facilities  -  Current Activity”.

52. What are the SOP or work instructions?

The Radiation Electronics Lab Work Instruction is available in Technical Library.
Radiation Biology

53. EPs required to staff lab?

Questions have been received relating to information needed on specific resources currently being applied in the contracts that will be consolidated into the Bioastronautics Contract (BC).  The consolidation of these contracts into one BC is expected to provide efficiency in the management of resources on the upcoming contract.  Therefore, specific resources being applied on current contracts being consolidated into the BC may change.  To help offerors have a better understanding of typical activities that occur in the laboratories applicable to the BC, additional information is provided in the electronic Technical Library listed under the section “General Documentation” and is entitled “Bioastronautics Laboratories/Facilities  -  Current Activity”.

54. Training and certification required for staff? 

The offeror shall propose training and certification based on their approach to SOW requirements.  Currently, Safety training is considered baseline for Radiation Biology (refer to Technical Library for Work Instructions on handling e.g., radioactive isotopes, hazardous chemicals, blood samples, etc).  Also, the current baseline for education is considered to be a Bachelor of Science for a laboratory technician, and a Master of Science or PhD to do experiments, model the data, and develop theories.

55. Radiation database- Who controls it? Level of access?  Hardware/software requirements?


Under the Bioastronautics Contract, a contractor employee, as the database manager, will control the Astronaut Exposure database in the Radiation Biology section.  The level of access is severely restricted and is presently available to fewer than 5 people.   The database itself is a Microsoft Access database on an institutional server.

Questions submitted via e-mail in response to release of the Draft RFP:

56. Section L, Volume IV, paragraph B(5) addresses the requirement for a Basis of Estimate (BOE).   Paragraph B(5)presents examples of how a BOE can be established for Labor and Non-Labor Resources.  The Labor estimate is at the “sub-skill level”, and the Non-Labor estimate includes, for example, “wrenches, sockets, jacks, calibration tools, etc.”   An effective BOE is essential for evaluation of a bidder’s proposal; however, to provide the required level of BOE for the scope and complexity of the Bioastronautics contract would require direct knowledge of substantial details (as presented in the examples) of the labor, non-labor equipment, facilities, etc. employed in the ongoing work under current contracts.  Only the incumbent contractor has knowledge of this level of detail.   While a non-incumbent contractor can develop a sound estimate and present a valid pricing methodology, a BOE at the required level of detail is not possible without additional information provided by the government.

We request that the government consider two possible options:

a. Provide complete documentation of the baseline Labor (by sub-skill level, and for the project and/or laboratory assigned) and Non-Labor Resources (by laboratory employed) under the current contracts.   This will form a foundation for a proposal BOE at the level of detail required by the government.   This will enable the government to evaluate all bidders with the same level of detail.

Questions have been received relating to information needed on specific resources currently being applied in the contracts that will be consolidated into the Bioastronautics Contract (BC).  The consolidation of these contracts into one BC is expected to provide efficiency in the management of resources on the upcoming contract.  Therefore, specific resources being applied on current contracts being consolidated into the BC may change.  To help offerors have a better understanding of typical activities that occur in the laboratories applicable to the BC, additional information is provided in the electronic Technical Library listed under the section “General Documentation” and is entitled “Bioastronautics Laboratories/Facilities  - Current Activity”.

b. Provide Labor and Non-Labor “plug-in” numbers (e.g., labor category and hours; material and travel estimates, etc.) for costing purposes.

The offeror shall propose the labor (skill categories needed, hours, etc.) based on their approach to work performed under the contract (this data will not be provided by NASA).  Non-Labor “ plug-in” numbers for materials are planned to be released to offerors via an amendment to the RFP.  Only “plug-in” numbers for example T/DOs are planned to be provided by the Government (reference Volume V – Cost in the RFP).

57. We understand that each of the incumbent contractors has contractor laboratory facilities that are essential to the NASA JSC Bioastronautics mission.  How will JSC provide the necessary insight to each bidder on required contractor-furnished laboratories in order to provide a BOE for this support?

To help offerors have a better understanding of typical activities that occur in the laboratories applicable to the BC, additional information is provided in the electronic Technical Library listed under the section “General Documentation” and is entitled “Bioastronautics Laboratories/Facilities  - Current Activity”.

58. What is the methodology and foundation for establishing the “probable” cost of doing business with an offeror, as described in section M, Cost Factor, page M-4?  It is not clear what is being evaluated and what the basis of that evaluation is.

The Probable Cost will be developed in accordance with Part 15 of the FAR and NASA FAR Supplement.

59. No DRD is included for the Baseline Operations Plan.  We assume it will be a submittal with the proposal, but we do not know if it will be in the DRD for subsequent update.

The Baseline Operational Readiness (BOR) Plan shall be a submitted with the offeror’s proposal.  A DRD was added to the final RFP relating to revisions to the BOR Plan.
60. Will the final RFP include the DRD specific requirement sheets for each DRD?

Yes
61. Paragraph 2.2.7.3, “Cellular and Molecular Research”, on page C-26 of the draft RFP is numbered the same as paragraph 2.2.7.3 Environmental Biophysics on page C-27.  Please clarify.

This was corrected in the final RFP.
62. The System Safety Program Plan cited in the paragraph at the bottom of Draft RFP page C-50 is not included in the DRD summary listing on page J-5-2 and subs.

The System Safety Program Plan is included as DRL #15, which is entitled, “SA-1-8 System Safety Program Plan”.

63. The Space Station Reliability and Maintainability Predictions Report shown at the bottom of page C-51 is not included in the DRD summary.

This was corrected in the final RFP.
64. More clarification is requested concerning the cost templates; specifically what templates go with what in section B.2 (b).  For example:

Phase in Costs: This is self-explanatory; however, no template was provided.  Is contractor format acceptable?

Core Completion Tasks: Is this to be priced using the hours on Page L-35?
IDIQ Task/Delivery Orders Issued: Is this to be priced using the sample delivery orders on page L-38.

Level-of-Effort:  Is this to be priced using the LOE Flex options that begin in Year 6.
Phase in Costs:  In the Core template for the prime (Cost Summary Template Prime), there is a column for the prime contractor to include all phase-in costs.  No other template is necessary for phase-in costs.

Core Completion Tasks:  The government-specified hours listed in the matrix in Section L-II instructions for Volume V – Cost (Section B) of the Final RFP is applicable to level of effort tasks that may be issued through a level of effort task order.  There will not be any level of effort tasks under Part 1 of the Statement of Work.

IDIQ Task/Delivery Orders Issued:  Yes, offerors shall submit a cost proposal that includes the cost of the example task/delivery orders in Appendix A of the final RFP.

Level of Effort:  The government-specified hours listed in the matrix in Section L-II instructions for Volume V – Cost (Section B) of the final RFP must be priced out by using template entitled “Labor Pricing Template” from the cost templates.  In addition, the offeror must provide hourly rates (cost and fee) applicable to the LOE flex option clause in Section F of the RFP (reference the template entitled “cost summary template flex”).  The rates proposed applicable to LOE flex option hours should start at contract year 3 and shall be proposed for each year up to year 10.
65. On the general instructions concerning electronic submissions, the RFP states not to change the format of the spreadsheets other than widening the columns.  However, in order to comply with our Disclosure Statement, they will need to be modified to accommodate the different indirect burdens.  Please advise.

The offeror may modify the spreadsheets provided to accommodate the offeror’s data.  Specific instructions have been added in the Section L cost instructions in the final RFP to provide additional clarification to address this issue.

66. Is the Government going to provide a mapping of the WD Categories to the RFP labor categories?

It is the contractor’s responsibility to appropriately match their labor categories to the Department of Labor Wage Determination categories.
67. Will the solicitation document with all the necessary certifications be submitted as a separate document or with one of the current required volumes?

Section K of the final RFP (Representations and Certifications) is to be filled out by the offeror and shall be submitted as a separate document.  

68. The SMHCSO Sub task orders 1 and 2 do not have compliance statements included in the third column as in all of the other sub tasks.  Will NASA include this data or is the contractor to provide understanding and correlation to the SOW?

There is no 3rd column on any task orders. 

69. Appendix A, page A-7, HEFO Sub TO 5 Human Factors Evaluations, Tests & Analysis states Requirement 2.  Should this be Requirement 1?

All requirements are numbered appropriately in the final RFP.

70. Appendix A pages A-30, MPMO Sub TO 2 HRF-Increment Definition, Development, and Implementation.  There is no Requirement #15.  The numbering jumps from 14 to 16.

All requirements are numbered appropriately in the final RFP.

71. Section C, 2.2.7.5 Muscle Laboratory, wording defines the EP Lab and does not represent the Muscle Laboratory requirement.   

The wording for the 2.2.7.6 Muscle Research Laboratory is correct and will remain unchanged.

72. Section L, page L-16, Section 3, Phase-in:  Please clarify the milestone that initiates the 60-day phase-in period, i.e., contract award or other.  Is it envisioned to have an overlap in the incumbent contracts and the new contract?

The 60-day period will be based on the effective date of the contract (performance of Statement of Work tasks begin under the contract), which is anticipated to be April 1, 2003.  As stated in Section L, the phase-in period will be the 60-day period prior to the effective date of the contract.  

The only overlap envisioned will be the SEAT contract (NAS9-19100) which ends on December 31, 2003.

73. There is a reference in the second paragraph on Page L-20 to a “RFP Form 2” to be completed for contracts executed by the prime contractor.  Please provide this form.

RFP Form 2 related to past performance is included in the final RFP.
74. Page L-20, paragraph 2, reference to a “Form 1” that is to be completed for contracts executed by subcontractors/team members.  There is an “RFP Form 1” that captures information about Key Personnel.  This must be a different “Form 1”.    Please clarify.  

The form you reference in the question above should have been RFP Form 2, which is included in the final RFP.
75. Please specify all clinical medical activities currently being performed for, or at JSC that will be included within the parameters of the proposed Bioastronautics contract.  For example, will Occupational Health services be provided under the Bioastronautics contract?

The Occupational Health Clinic will not be included in this contract.  Please reference the technical library for information on current work.  (See Annual Work Plans, Work Instructions, etc.) 

76. Draft RFP, Attachment J-14: Please provide a copy of the MOU between EA and SLSD? 

The MOU is available in the Technical Library Website under “General Documentation”.

77. Draft RFP, Section C: 1.2.3, First paragraph:  Is a third party registrar accredited by the RvA acceptable in lieu of the RAB?

Yes, this is acceptable.  The Statement of Work in the final RFP reflects this.

78. Draft RFP, Section C1.1.2, First paragraph: What is the current level of utilization of each facility and lab?  What and when were the peak loads for those labs?

To help offerors have a better understanding of typical activities that occur in the laboratories applicable to the BC, additional information is provided in the electronic Technical Library listed under the section “General Documentation” and is entitled “Bioastronautics Laboratories/Facilities  -  Current Activity”.

79. Presolicitation Conference, EA presentation slide, page L-14, second paragraph, Draft RFP Section L, Part II, Volume I:  In the Presolicitation Conference, it was stated that the Engineering Directorate (EA) had Work Instructions for Certification of CTS hardware.  Please provide the work instruction.

Work Instructions EA-WI-016 and EA-WI-018 were added to the Technical Resources Library.

80. Please provide existing staffing levels for each contract being consolidated under the Bioastronautics Contract.

Questions have been received relating to information needed on specific resources currently being applied in the contracts that will be consolidated into the Bioastronautics Contract (BC).  The consolidation of these contracts into one BC is expected to provide efficiency in the management of resources on the upcoming contract.  Therefore, specific resources being applied on current contracts being consolidated into the BC may change.  To help offerors have a better understanding of typical activities that occur in the laboratories applicable to the BC, additional information is provided in the electronic Technical Library listed under the section “General Documentation” and is entitled “Bioastronautics Laboratories/Facilities  -  Current Activity”.
81. Please provide the existing skill mix for each contract being consolidated under the Bioastronautics Contract.

Questions have been received relating to information needed on specific resources currently being applied in the contracts that will be consolidated into the Bioastronautics Contract (BC).  The consolidation of these contracts into one BC is expected to provide efficiency in the management of resources on the upcoming contract.  Therefore, specific resources being applied on current contracts being consolidated into the BC may change.  To help offerors have a better understanding of typical activities that occur in the laboratories applicable to the BC, additional information is provided in the electronic Technical Library listed under the section “General Documentation” and is entitled “Bioastronautics Laboratories/Facilities  -  Current Activity”.

82. Please provide the existing supervisor-to-employee ratio for each contract being consolidated under the Bioastronautics Contract.

Questions have been received relating to information needed on specific resources currently being applied in the contracts that will be consolidated into the Bioastronautics Contract (BC).  The consolidation of these contracts into one BC is expected to provide efficiency in the management of resources on the upcoming contract.  Therefore, specific resources being applied on current contracts being consolidated into the BC may change.  To help offerors have a better understanding of typical activities that occur in the laboratories applicable to the BC, additional information is provided in the electronic Technical Library listed under the section “General Documentation” and is entitled “Bioastronautics Laboratories/Facilities  -  Current Activity”.

83. Draft RFP, Attachment J-14: The following document does not reside on the electronic library:  SF4-WI-005 (Project Management Report and Schedules).  Please provide access to the document. 

The applicable document is now SM-WI-004 – Project Management Reports, which is currently available on Technical Library Website.

84. Please provide a complete acronym list.

An acronym list is provided at the end of the SOW in the final RFP.
85. Draft RFP, Section G.17, Page G-16, paragraph 3: The referenced clause resulted in a number of questions:

1) Is there a list of facilities, equipment, and property that identify the future replacement date, the amortization/replacement rationale that led to that date, and the expected replacement cost?

2) Is there a list that identifies, for the last 5 years, what was replaced and the cost and date of that replacement?  

3) Is there a documentation list that will enable the offerors to define the cost ceiling of facility equipment and property per item?  For example, a deluxe lab analyzer may cost $100,000 while other units on the market may cost $10,000.  Is there a cost ceiling per item of some value?

4) Does the contractor have the authority to determine the replacement criteria and date or is it a joint JSC/contractor decision?

5) Based on historical data, would you provide guidance on estimated dollar values per year that we should budget/propose to satisfy this clause?

6) Is there any facility equipment or other items owned by the incumbent that will be removed and require replacement if the incumbent loses the competition?  If so, please provide a list of that equipment or other items.

1) A listing will not be provided that identifies when the equipment listed in Attachment J-6 should be replaced.  The offeror has the responsibility of estimating when equipment should be replaced.  The value of the equipment listed in Attachment J-6 is the acquisition cost of the piece of equipment.  The list of equipment in Attachment J-6 has been updated in the final RFP and also shows the model year of the equipment listed.

2) The list described will not be provided by the Government.  However, Attachment J-6 will include the model year of the equipment listed.

3) The offeror is responsible for providing a piece of equipment that will have the necessary capabilities needed to meet contract requirements.  No ceiling is specified in the RFP.

4) Yes; see answer to #3 above.

5) It is the Offeror’s responsibility to estimate this.  The model year for equipment is now listed in Attachment J-6 to help offerors in their approach to property listed.  

6) The listing of equipment in Attachment J-6 is Government-owned property that will be available for use by the contractor on a no-charge-for-use basis during the performance of the contract.  The approach to equipment in addition to what is listed in Attachment J-6 shall be based on the offeror’s approach to meeting RFP requirements.

86. Draft RFP, Section G.12, Page G-13: This section does not delineate any calibration responsibilities.  Does the contractor have any calibration responsibilities or will NASA provide all calibration services?

The contractor is responsible for calibration as stated in the SOW (WBS 1.1.1).
87. Draft RFP, Section L, Page L-16, paragraph 2.4: Please make the following databases available because we need them to define our Phase in Plan:

1) Test Readiness database

2) Training and Certification database

3) Prototype/Mockup database

4) Discrepancy Report (DR) database

The Test readiness Database, Training and Certification database, and Prototype/Mockup database are within the JSC firewall and internal access is limited. Offerors may request supervised access to these databases by contacting the Contracting Officer via e-mail.  

The DR database can be accessed at:

http://wwwsrqa.jsc.nasa.gov/qarc/webreports/
88. Draft RFP: Is the bidder responsible for maintaining and operating bonded storage/cert. stores in any of the JSC facilities (e.g., Bldg. 36 Biotechnology Lab)?

The contractor will not be responsible for maintaining or operating JSC bonded storage facilities. However, the contractor will be responsible for maintaining and operating (within JSC guidelines) any Controlled Storage areas located within laboratory facilities.
89. Draft RFP, Attachment J-14: How will the government require the contractor to treat equipment drawings under the new contract?  Will the government require the contractor to bring up to standard transition equipment drawings, which do not conform to NASA Standard Engineering Drawings (ref.: Attachment J-14, JPG 8500.4D)?

This will handled on a case-by-case basis and will be specified in the applicable Delivery/Task Order when issued.

90. Draft RFP, Section C, Page C-46, paragraph 2.6.1: Will transition equipment drawings be provided for all non-flight and flight drawings in electronic format as well as hardcopy?  If the electronic format is provided, what CAD system(s) will the files are compatible?  Will solid (i.e., 3D) CAD models of the hardware be provided as well?  What CAD systems(s) will the solid model files be compatible with?  Will the CAD models, electronic 2D drawings, and hardcopy be under configuration control for flight hardware or just a subset of these?

Drawings and models are in a number of formats. Specific formats the Contractor will use will be specified in the relevant Delivery/Task Order.  All drawings and models for flight hardware are under configuration control.

91. Draft RFP, Attachment J-6: The Draft RFP does not contain information regarding the availability of Government supplied expendables/consumables for this contract.  Will NASA provide access to the Federal Stock for materials, consumables, and office supplies?

During the performance of the contract, the contractor will be authorized to purchase items through GSA supply sources.  Specifics will be handled on a case-by-case basis.
92. Draft RFP, Section C, Page C-46, paragraph 2.6.1: Will the government provide a list of all certified and in-process flight software used to operate this contract and their status as GFE or contractor owned?  Please indicate whether the flight software is contractor developed or a COTS product

Flight software is a combination of GFE, contractor generated, and COTS.  Details on software requirements will be provided in a Task/delivery order.
93. Draft RFP, Section C: Will the government provide a list of all software applications (e.g., Microsoft Office) and their status, as GFE or contractor owned?

The list of installation-accountable property and services provided by the Government is listed in clause G.11, “List of Installation-Accountable Property and Services”.  Workstations for onsite personnel (including standard load software applications) will be provided to the contractor via the JSC contract for onsite computer support that is in effect during the performance of the contract.  The current JSC contract for onsite computer support is currently the Outsourcing Desktop Initiative for NASA (ODIN) contract, which is contract NAS 5-98144.
94. Draft RFP, Section C, Page C-22, paragraph 2.1.3.5: Please indicate which labs/areas use the LIM database (e.g., Water and Food Analysis Lab).  If possible, please provide access to the LIM database or a summary of the LIM database description and operating procedure. 
Water and Food Analysis Lab, Toxicology, and Microbiology use LIM databases.  Access to these databases is not available to offsite personnel.  The database description and operating procedure is available outside of JSC (i.e. LIMS software is COTS.)

95. Draft RFP, Section C, Page C-18, Part 2: Please provide a list of flight hardware, relevant to this Section and Part, that is in development with a summary of development status and targeted first Shuttle flight. 

The flight hardware development activity is dynamic, and a sampling of support currently being provided includes: Cargo PC Display for Shuttle avionics (Pre-SRR, flight TBD; ISS Distributed Galley (Pre-SRR, flight TBD; ISS Service Module Radiation Protection (Pre-SRR, flight TBD); Cupola (post CDR, Flight TBD); Advanced Resistive Exercise Device (ARED) (Pre-PDR, flight 13.A.1); Node 2 (Post-PDR; flight STS120-ISS 10A); payload and subsystem support to JEM (ISS flight 1J), Columbus (ISS flight 1E), ATV and HTV, flights TBD.  In addition, Pre-Phase A (TRL 4-6) projects: Advanced Concepts for Crew Restraints and Advanced Concepts for Imagery Systems.
96. Draft RFP, Section C: Please provide the work instructions for the EB Bldg. 36 Biotechnology Lab.

The applicable work instructions are included in the electronic Technical Library.
97. Draft RFP, Section M: How will the Phase-In plan be weighted in the proposal evaluation?  It is not mentioned in Section M.

The proposed plan for phase-in will be evaluated under the Management and Key Personnel mission suitability subfactor.  
98. Draft RFP, Section C, Section 2.4.4, paragraph 2, page C-35: Will the EXPRESS racks for the BTF be GFE?

Express racks for the BTF are GFE.
99. Draft RFP, Section C, Section 2.4.3, paragraph 1, page C-34: What specific certifications and unique skills are required to support the Biological Systems Laboratories?

The offeror shall propose certifications and unique skills as related to its approach to meeting SOW requirements.

The Biological Systems Laboratories currently are made up of 5 main areas; Biotechnology Labs, the Bioanalytical Lab, the Molecular Genetics Laboratory, the Flight Definition Lab, and the Sensors Development Lab.  The Biotechnology Laboratories utilize skills in biological sciences, Microencapsulation, specialized cell culturing in NASA developed hardware, research into new techniques for growing cultures, and the testing of ground based experimental hardware, and the requirements generation, development and fabrication of new hardware for cell culturing in space.  The Bioanalytical Lab is focused on the nanotechnology efforts for analyzing all aspects of culture systems for future automated experiments.  The Molecular Genetics Laboratory requires skills in gene research and analysis to study the differentiation that takes place in culture systems being used for experiments.  The Flight Definition laboratory assists PI’s in the development of protocols for culturing cells for space flight.  Use of space-qualified hardware for growing cell cultures is required.  The Sensor Development Lab has research biologists with knowledge of biological sensors used to monitor and control current cell culture systems as well as new technology development.  Although no specific certifications are currently required in these laboratories, all must be familiar with cell culturing techniques and the hazards of working with chemicals, reagents, and pressurized gases that are used in the research and analytical processes.  All laboratories currently require Ph.D. level experience for certain aspects of the work.
100. Draft RFP Section C: Section 2.4.5, paragraph 1, page C-35: “The contractor shall conduct cell and tissue culture experiments interactively and successfully in ground-based and flight systems.  These experiments are those proposed by NASA-sponsored NRA-recipient or NIH Principal Investigators (PI’s).” Won’t the PIs already be funded by the NRA to conduct the experiment?  The Bioastronautics Contractor could support the development, integration, and testing, thereby facilitating the PI’s efforts.  Please clarify this issue.

In the process of preparing for flight experiments, the government may direct the contractor to support experiments associated with the PI’s approved research.  A task/delivery order will specify those tasks.  The status of the PI’s funding is not relevant to the contractual requirement.

101. Draft RFP, Section C, Section 2.4.5, paragraph 1, page C-35: What are the expected number of experiments per year and the maximum to be supported at one time?

To help offerors have a better understanding of typical activities that occur in the laboratories applicable to the BC, additional information is provided in the electronic Technical Library listed under the section “General Documentation” and is entitled “Bioastronautics Laboratories/Facilities  -  Current Activity”.

102. Draft RFP, Section C, Section 2.4.6, paragraph 2, page C-36: For reference, what is the current level of support and skill mix for the Integration Project?

Questions have been received relating to information needed on specific resources currently being applied in the contracts that will be consolidated into the Bioastronautics Contract (BC).  The consolidation of these contracts into one BC is expected to provide efficiency in the management of resources on the upcoming contract.  Therefore, specific resources being applied on current contracts being consolidated into the BC may change.  To help offerors have a better understanding of typical activities that occur in the laboratories applicable to the BC, additional information is provided in the electronic Technical Library listed under the section “General Documentation” and is entitled “Bioastronautics Laboratories/Facilities  -  Current Activity”.
103. Draft RFP, Section C, Section 2.4.9, page C-38:  How many experiments are expected to be supported by the Bioreactor Research Support Project over the course of a year?

To help offerors have a better understanding of typical activities that occur in the laboratories applicable to the BC, additional information is provided in the electronic Technical Library listed under the section “General Documentation” and is entitled “Bioastronautics Laboratories/Facilities  -  Current Activity”.
104. How are the grants processed through the Biotech research?  Do they require a NASA PI to endorse?  There are NRAs and SMO’s but what other facility is there for grants to get into the system? How do private grants get put into the system?  What type of review board is involved with selecting which grants have priority for flight or which have more potential?

The  responsibility of the contractor with respect to grants is to provide administrative assistance “for up to 200” grants per year (SOW 1.2.11).  The Task Orders will define any additional responsibilities with respect to grants.
105. Draft RFP Section C; How does Biotech tie into the education community beyond an internet web site?  Who is responsible for the microgravity web site?  How often is the web site updated?

The SOW (2.4.8) describes the scope of the Biotech education and outreach activities.  Specific activities will be described in a T/DO.  This contract is not responsible for the “microgravity website.”

106. How many TPSs and DRs are processed per year on the Biotech flight hardware?  What percent are science related and which are hardware related?

From January 2001 through May 2, 2002 there were 1,309 TPS’s and 301 DR’s processed. The database does not differentiate between science and hardware. Thus, this information cannot be provided.

107. Who decides if a new piece of equipment is needed to support various areas of research?

Section G explains the procedures and regulations regarding property.  

108. What is the process for purchasing new equipment?

Section G explains the procedures and regulations regarding property.  
109. Draft RFP Section C Section 2.5.3, page C-43: Is there a preferred format for the Life Sciences Data Archive? 

The LSDA currently uses a Microsoft SQL database application.   Any changes in format would be covered under a Task/Delivery Order.

110. Draft RFP Section C, Section 1.1.1, paragraph 2, page C-6:  “For every baseline facility and laboratory (herein referred to collectively as facilities) the contractor shall provide:

Assurance of security for the facility”.   Isn’t site security handled by a separate contractor?

The services of the JSC security contractor are provided on site at JSC.  The Bioastronautics contractor is responsible to use all necessary means to assure the security of the facilities.

111. Is there a preferred format for the TSC Database?    

The Telescience Center (TSC) currently uses a Microsoft SQL database application on a Windows 2000 server.  It is not on the JSC web, but is isolated.  The operational database resides in Building 30 and the development system is in Building 36.

112. Since this procurement involves the consolidation of work presently being performed under several contracts:  

a.  What are the specific contracts being consolidated?

The contracts are NAS 9-97005, NAS 9-97114, NAS 9-97029, and portions of NAS 9-18800 and NAS 9-19100.

b.  What is the scheduled assumption of responsibility for the work from each individual contract?

Assumption of work from NAS 9-97005, NAS 9-97114, NAS 97029, NAS 9-18800 will be at contract start, which is anticipated to be April 1, 2003.  It is planned that the work from NAS 9-19100 will be picked up via IDIQ task/deliver order(s) after NAS 9-19100 expires, which is December 31, 2003.  Baseline Operational Readiness laboratories/facilities affected by contract NAS 9-19100 are shown in Attachment J-13 of the RFP.

113. When the RFP refers to multiple versions of a reference document can we assume the most recent listed version of any document is the controlling version? 

Every effort has been made to include the most recent version of referenced documents.  The most recent version of listed documents will be the applicable controlling document.

114. Section B.3 references 1852.216-87 as the provision for payment of IDIQ Orders. This provision would appear to apply to cost reimbursement IDIQ orders only.  What payment provision would apply to FFP orders?

A payment clause applicable to fixed price IDIQ task/delivery orders are included in the final RFP in Section G.

115. In Section C, WBS 2.2.7.3 is used to number two laboratories. Should we assume the second laboratory (Environmental Biophysics) is 2.2.7.4 and renumber the remaining sections in 2.2.7?  

Yes, your assumption is correct.  This was corrected in the final RFP.

116. Is the Biotechnology Facility (BTF) in C.2.4.4 subject to the Bioastronautics Flight Hardware (BFH) requirements of Section C-2.6?

Yes, Flight Hardware requirements for 2.6 will be applicable to all flight hardware produced under the contract.

117. In Section C.2.6.5, under Hazard Control, the process identified of going through SMART is unique to GFE projects. We recommend this paragraph also include a reference for Payload hardware that goes through the Payload Safety Review Panel.

The referenced paragraph has been updated in the in the final RFP to reflect that hazard controls for Payload Hardware will be processed through the Payload Safety Review Panel. 

118. Section F.8 says IDIQ orders may be cost reimbursement or fixed price. Please explain under what conditions fixed price IDIQ orders would be used.

Fixed price IDIQ task/delivery orders are planned to be issued for tasks/deliverables that have requirements and schedules that can be defined clearly enough to allow for a fixed price task/delivery order to be issued.  

119. In Section F.9.c, the Draft RFP states that the contractor is expected to respond within 5 calendar days to NASA’s request for an IDIQ using Attachment J-4.  We recommend changing the requirement to five working days to accommodate the more complex tasks.

Clause F.9 has been revised in the final RFP to show five working days.

120. In Section H.6, Small Business Subcontracting Goals, Veteran Owned Businesses are listed twice, once as Veteran Owned Business Concern of 1%, and once as Veteran Owned Small Business Concern of 1%. Does the former relate to the “Small” Business Subcontracting Goals?  

The goal for Veteran-Owned Small Business concerns was inadvertently listed twice.  There should be only one goal of 1% for Veteran-Owned Small Business concerns.  This was corrected in the final RFP.

121. Section J-1.IV.A and Section L, Volume IV.B.1.a refer to the performance-based core capabilities in WBS 2.1 of the Statement of Work. Should the reference be to WBS 1.0? 

Yes, this was corrected in the final RFP.

122. Do you intend to incorporate the Phase-In Plan into Section J of the Model Contract?  

Yes, it will be a part of the contract as Attachment J-7.

123. Section L.7:  Consistent with prior NASA RFPs, we recommend that the Form 1 for Key Personnel be excluded from the Volume I page limitation.  Our rationale is that the format and content of information are specified by the RFP, and page layout and quantity are not fully under the Offeror’s control.

RFP Form 1 will not have a page limitation (reference Section L of the RFP)..

124. Section L.7:  Consistent with prior NASA RFPs, we recommend that compliance tables and acronym/abbreviation lists be excluded from the Volume I page limitation.  Our rationale is that this material is provided to assist the evaluator and does not contain proposal information that is scored.

Acronym lists will be excluded from the Volume I page limitation and is noted in the final RFP (reference Section L).
125. Section L.7:  To facilitate the effective utilization of graphics in the proposal, we recommend that a smaller font size (e.g., 8 point) be permitted in tables and figures.  Graphics of this size are easily readable.

A font size of 10 point will be allowed for tables and figures and is reflected in the final RFP (reference Section L).

126. In reference to Section L-Part II, Volume I – Technical and Management, B.1.a.Part 1 - Bioastronautics Core Capabilities (paragraph 1): Does the “Plan” identified in the third sentence refer to the Baseline Operational Readiness Plan of Volume II or should the term be interpreted as the management approach proposed for Bioastronautics Core Capabilities?

This was deleted in the final RFP.

127. Section L, Volume III, Past Performance, General Performance, Paragraph 2: Should the second form reference be Form 2 rather than Form 1?

Yes, the second sentence should refer to Form 2, which is included in the final RFP.

128. The ISS Contract Consolidation Strategy appears to have the possibility of some impact on the Bioastronautics Contract.  Please clarify the following:

a.  Is CheCS hardware sustaining engineering going to be part of the Bioastronautics contract at start date, or, contracted for through the ISS Flight Equipment Sustaining and Operations Contract?

No decision has been made at this time regarding what contract(s) will be used for CHeCS sustaining engineering.  If it is decided that the work will be included under the Bioastronautics Contract, it will be issued under an IDIQ task order.

b.  Are ISS habitability design, human factors, human factors requirements integration, payload human factors and acoustics going to be part of a “bridge contract” given to Johnson Engineering, or incorporated into the Bioastronautics Contract in accordance with C.2.1.2 and the example Task Order in Appendix A?

Habitability design, human factors, human factor requirements integration, payload human factors and acoustics are in the final RFP (reference SOW WBS 2.1).

129. Section F-9. Not providing equitable adjustments on $500K Delivery Orders for changes on less than or equal to $50K dilutes a Contractor’s rate of return.  We suggest that the breakpoint be moved to $1M or more.  Also, we suggest that the dollar value of a group of change requests be used in determining if equitable adjustment is appropriate in place of individual change requests. 

Clause F.9 will not be revised to accommodate your suggested changes.  The section of clause F.9 you are referring to is considered to have the appropriate threshold levels needed to help alleviate some contract administration burdens for both the Government and Contractor during contract performance.

130. Based on the wording of sub paragraph g, we take the thresholds of $50,000 and $25,000 to be applicable to cost reimbursable task/delivery orders only and not to fixed price orders.  Please clarify.

Clause F.9 has been revised to clarify that the thresholds only apply to cost reimbursement task/delivery orders.

131. Section J-13: The office space that the Government available for on-site personnel is not specified.  Will this definition be added in the Final RFP?

The numbers below represents NASA’s current estimate of office space available for on-site personnel and will be available in Section L of the final RFP:

	BUILDING
	SPACE AVAILABLE

	Bldg. 17
	1340 sq. ft.

	Bldg. 15
	2815 sq. ft.

	Bldg. 13
	480 sq. ft.

	Bldg. 31
	1440 sq. ft.

	Bldg. 37
	11700 sq. ft.

	Bldg. 8
	1430 sq. ft.

	Bldg. 29
	2970 sq. ft.


132. L-Part II, Volume IV – Technical Resources, C.2.e and Section L-Part II, Volume V – Cost, A (paragraph 2):  Relative to the stated requirement that each major subcontractor “submit a full proposal (everything that is required for the Prime contractor)”:  
a.
Does this pertain only to Volume IV, in addition to the requirement stated for Volume V?

Each major subcontractor is not required to submit a separate Technical Resources Volume.  The Technical Resources Volume is required by the Prime Contractor, which shall incorporate a consolidation of all labor resources and non-labor resources of both the prime and subcontractor(s).  However, major subcontractor(s) must submit a cost proposal.

b.   For resources provided by the Prime for use by a major subcontractor, does the subcontractor’s proposal simply state the resource as an assumption without cost?

If the question is referring to the non-labor resources in Volume IV, the costs must be stated to fully understand non-labor resources being proposed.  If the question is referring to labor resources, the subcontractor must state the number of FTE’s with the appropriate hours as required in the instructions in Volume IV.  

c. 
To protect the confidentiality of cost-related and other business sensitive data, will a clause be added to the RFP allowing a major subcontractor to submit its proposal directly to the Government?  If so, does the major subcontractor submit a Volume IV in its entirety in addition to Volume V directly to the Government?
A subcontractor may submit its proposal directly to the government.  However, resources data and cost data at a summary level must be available to the prime in order for the prime to consolidate this data as required in some of the cost templates.  For example, the Cost Summary Template for Prime, Resources Template, and Labor Conversion Template for Completion Form require the prime contractor to consolidate both the subcontractor(s) and primes resources and cost data.

133. Sections B and F provide a format for contract value for Estimated Cost and Available Award Fee.  There is no format for Firm Fixed Price, although Section E and I make reference to Fixed Price Provisions.  Will Section B be amended to provide contract value for fixed price work?

Yes, the final RFP includes a clause in Section B that addresses fixed price IDIQ task/delivery orders.

134. Clauses F.6 and F.7 have certain areas listed as “TBD by Contracting Officer”.  Will these areas be defined in the final RFP?

The final RFP defines those areas for clauses F.6 and F.7.  

135. Page I-6, paragraph “c” is blank.  Will the final RFP fill in the blank, or is this to be proposed/negotiated?

The final RFP was revised to show 60 days.

136. In the Statement of Work, information technology (IT) support requirements are indicated.  These span the wide variety of tasks inherent in providing systems infrastructure, software development and maintenance, and communications (reference Draft RFP Section C, paragraphs 1.1.1, 1.2.5, 1.2.10, and 2.3).  Additionally, in Appendix A, the Sample Task Order for Space Medicine and Health Care Systems details activities spanning the same range of IT services. 

In Section L, Volume IV, Subsection C, the Standard Labor Categories available do not seem to address the range of skills and experience that are necessary to support the IT requirements described in the RFP sections indicated above.  May the category title be changed from “Data Management” to “Information Technology” to better describe the required skills?

The skill category titled “Data Management” has been changed to “Information Technology and Data Management” in the final RFP.

137. Section C, Subsection 2.1.3.3 (second paragraph) states, “The contractor shall develop and maintain ground-based facilities to simulate space radiation for critical research”.  Should “develop and maintain” read “utilize”?

This sentence is not correct.  The Contractor is not expected to “develop and maintain” ground-based facilities to simulate space radiation.  The sentence has been deleted in the final RFP.
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